

October 2022



Document history

Name of policy	Control of Substances Hazardous to Health (CoSHH)
Purpose of policy	New Forest District Council (NFDC) is committed to providing healthy and productive working environment, safe from hazards. This policy and subsequent arrangements detail NFDC's commitment to ensuring the safety of its employees and others by eliminating or controlling exposure to potentially hazardous substances in the workplace.
Policy applies to	This corporate policy and arrangements apply to all NFDC employees, contractors, agency workers, visitors, volunteers and members of public who may be affected by the Council's undertakings.
Frequency of review	Bi-annual or if there has been a significant change in legislation or procure.
Latest update	October 2022
Update overview	October 2022 General update; Formatting Update; updated CoSHH assessment template form and CoSHH assessment guidance.



Contents

Document history2
Contents
1. Policy
1.1 Introduction4
1.1.1 What is CoSHH?4
1.2 Scope4
1.3 Legislative and regulatory context5
1.4 Definitions6
1.5 Key Duties and Responsibilities7
2. Identification and Assessment9
2.1 Identification of Risks9
2.2 Assessment9
2.3 Managing the issues9
3. Good Practice Standards10
3.1 Procurement of Substances and Materials10
3.2 Risk Assessment10
3.3 Storage10
3.4 Use of Substances and Materials10
3.5 Disposal10
3.6 Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) and Respiratory Protective Equipment (RPE)11
3.7 Monitoring and Health Surveillance11
3.8 Documentation
3.9 Accidents and Emergency Procedures11
4. Training And competence12
5. Additional Information13
6. Appendix13
6.1 General guide on process to follow14
6.2 Corporate CoSHH Assessment Template16



1. Policy

1.1 Introduction

New Forest District Council (NFDC) has a duty to ensure compliance with the Control of Substances Hazardous to Health (CoSHH) Regulations 2002, The Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 and other associated legislation for all employees who may come in to contact with hazardous substances. NFDC also has a duty to ensure, so far as is reasonably practicable, the health, safety and welfare of contractors, agency staff or volunteers working on their behalf.

This policy sets out clear roles and responsibilities to ensure both the compliance with the legislation and best practice is adhered to.

1.1.1 What is CoSHH?

CoSHH is the law that requires employers to control substances that are hazardous to health. Employers can prevent or reduce employee's exposure to hazardous substances by:

- Finding out what the health hazards are
- Deciding how to prevent harm to health (risk assessment)
- Providing control measures to reduce harm to health
- Making sure they are used
- Keeping all control measures in good working order
- Providing information, instruction and training for employees and others
- Providing monitoring and health surveillance in appropriate cases
- Planning for emergencies

Most businesses use substances, or products that are mixtures of substances. Some processes create substances. These could harm employees, contractors and other people.

Sometimes substances are easily recognisable as harmful. Common substances such as paint, bleach or dust from natural materials may also be harmful.

1.2 Scope

This policy applies to:

- All employees working for or on behalf of New Forest District Council (NFDC)
- Agency, contract workers or volunteers who may come in to contact with harmful substances whilst carrying out work on behalf of NFDC
- Members of public who are not directly involved in work processes but may be affected by NFDC undertakings
- This policy does not cover Lead or Asbestos as they are covered by their own specific regulations and as such separate polices exist

New Forest District Council

Appletree Court, Beaulieu Road, Lyndhurst. Hampshire. SO43 7PN newforest.gov.uk



1.3 Legislative and regulatory context

This section highlights the key pieces of legislation that applies, and the general requirements NFDC is required to follow.

1.3.1 Control of Substances Hazardous to Health (CoSHH) Regulations 2002

Control of Substances Hazardous to Health (CoSHH) Regulations 2002 is the piece of legislation that sets out the general duties which employers have towards employees and persons affected by their work to control their exposure to hazardous substances. NFDC acknowledges and accepts its responsibilities under the Control of Substances Hazardous to Health (CoSHH) Regulations 2002 and will ensure to control all significant risks to its employee and those affected by their work.

1.3.2 Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999

The Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999 (Management Regulations) generally make more explicit what employers, such as NFDC, are required to do to manage health and safety under the Health and Safety at Work Act. Like the Act, they apply to every activity.

The main requirement is for employers to carry out **risk assessments**.

The duties of the Management Regulations overlap with other regulations because of their wide-ranging general nature. Where duties overlap, compliance with the more specific regulation will normally be sufficient to comply with the corresponding duty in the Management Regulations.

For example, the Control of Substances Hazardous to Health Regulations (CoSHH) require employers to assess the risks from exposure to hazardous substances. An assessment for the purposes of CoSHH will not need to be repeated for the purposes of the Management Regulations.

1.3.3 The Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974

The Health and Safety at Work etc Act 1974 is the **primary piece** of legislation covering occupational health and safety in Great Britain. This piece of legislation sets out the general duties which employers have towards employees and members of the public, employees have to themselves and to each other and certain self-employed have towards themselves and others.

New Forest District Council acknowledges and accepts its responsibilities under The Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 and will ensure to control all risks to its employees, contractors and those who may be affected by the work they undertake are controlled to as low as is reasonably practicable.



1.4 Definitions

Term	Definition
Responsible Person (RP)	A person who has the overall responsibility of ensuring the risks of DSE are being managed as far as reasonably practicable.
Competent person (CP)	A person who has the correct level of skill, knowledge, experience and training to undertake a task.
Hazard	a hazard is anything which has the potential to cause harm.
Risk	is the chance of that harm occurring.
Control measures	Systems and procedures put in place to eliminate or minimise risk.
Suitable and sufficient	For a risk assessment to be deemed suitable and sufficient it should identify the significant risks arising from the work activity, identify and prioritise the measures needed to be taken to comply with the relevant statutory provisions, it should be appropriate to the nature of the activity, and it should be such that it remains valid for a reasonable period.



1.5 Key Duties and Responsibilities

1.5.1 Chief Executive & Executive Management Team (EMT)

- The Chief Executive has ultimate accountability for all health and safety issues in the Council. The Chief Executive is supported by the Executive Management Team (EMT).
- Ensure the organisation complies with the Health and Safety Policy requirements and provides the suitable provision of resources to ensure a safe working environment for staff.
- Ensure that health and safety policies and procedures and processes in place are adequate, this will be through delegation to the Corporate Health and Safety Team.

1.5.2 Senior Management and Line Managers

- Ensuring any hazardous substances, materials, process emissions such as dusts, gases and fumes that employees may be exposed to are managed in accordance with this policy and legislative requirements.
- Ensure safer alternatives are used wherever possible.
- Ensure an accurate record is kept of substances and materials held and process emissions created within their teams and that they have been suitably and sufficiently assessed.
- Ensure that copies of **CoSHH assessments** are available, including all relevant material safety data sheets (MSDS).
- Ensure all employees who may be exposed to a hazardous substance, material or process emission has read and understood the risk assessment and is aware of its location along with the relevant MSDS and, where required, safe system of work.
- Ensure all CoSHH assessments are reviewed .
- Ensure suitable and sufficient personal protective equipment (PPE) is available for all employees that may be exposed to a harmful substance, material or process emission where it is indicated as required in the risk assessment.
- Ensure that any respiratory protective equipment (RPE) is subject to appropriate inspection and maintenance in accordance with the manufacturers and regulatory guidance and good practice standards are followed in relation to face fit testing as in section 3.6 of this policy.
- Where appropriate, ensure that the testing of mechanical extraction and local exhaust ventilations systems takes place every 14 months, with records maintained for a minimum of 5 years where these systems are provided as part of local CoSHH arrangements.
- Maintain suitable and sufficient records of all of the above to demonstrate compliance.



1.5.3 Employees

All employees have a duty to cooperate with NFDC with regards to health and safety issues to ensure that they, and others who may be affected by their acts or omissions, can be kept safe

As such, all employees must:

- Familiarise themselves with their relevant **risk assessments** for hazardous substances, materials and process emissions within their work area.
- Act upon findings within each assessment such as ensuring PPE is being worn correctly when it is required and ensuring safe storage, use and disposal of substances as appropriate.
- Attend all training when required to do so.
- Report any concerns to their immediate line manager (whether actual or suspected) in relation to any hazardous substance, material or process emission.
- Attend occupational health assessments when required to do so for health surveillance relating to their use of hazardous substances, materials or exposure to process emissions.
- Report incidents in relation to any hazardous substance, material or process emissions in line with the Council's accident reporting procedure.

1.5.4 Contractors

All contractors providing services, either temporary or permanent, for NFDC must comply with the Council's CoSHH Policy.

Specifically, they must ensure that their own substances in use have been suitably and sufficiently risk assessed, and all significant findings documented and that up-todate copies are made available to NFDC at all times.

1.5.5 Corporate Health and Safety Team

- Provide independent advice and support to Managers, Supervisors and Employees when necessary.
- Undertake a more detailed CoSHH assessment as required.
- Manage the mandatory CoSHH E-Learning module.
- Review the need to provide new training for CoSHH Assessors.
- Carry out investigations into accidents and near misses as necessary, record findings and root causes and provide recommendations for considerations by management.
- Review and update this policy, training module and assessments on a regular basis and as required such as in response to legislative change.



2. Identification and Assessment

2.1 Identification of Risks

NFDC aims to ensure all significant risks associated with hazardous substances are identified using assessments, guidance and liaising with employees.

2.2 Assessment

All substances used within NFDC must be subject to a suitable and sufficient CoSHH risk assessment completed by a competent person.

The competent person must have a working knowledge of the substances and processes being assessed and, in some instances, various parties may need to collaborate when carrying out an assessment. Those individuals having responsibility for any work area or activity must ensure that these assessments have taken place.

When carrying out a CoSHH risk assessments the guidance in Appendix 6.2 should be consulted as this offers a simple approach to completing the assessment.

Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) on all substances should be supplied by the manufacturer and retailer and should be used as part of the assessment process.

The **CoSHH risk assessment** should consider the health risks created by any work practice and the measures that need to be taken as a consequence, including:

- What substances are present and in what form;
- What harmful effects are possible, including the possibility of occupational asthma;
- Where and under what conditions are substances stored and handled;
- What harmful emissions may be generated by combining substances;
- What might be the enhanced effect of multiple exposures;
- Who could be affected, to what extent and for how long?;
- How likely and under what circumstances exposure may occur;
- What precautions need to be taken to ensure the health of the individual and compliance with the CoSHH regulations.

Once a risk assessment is complete, safe systems of work can be developed which provide employees with instructions on how to safely carry out an activity whilst minimising risk. These can be recorded directly on to the risk assessment in most cases.

2.3 Managing the issues

When information concerning a substance(s) present and the work practices involved has been gathered and an assessment completed, it may be concluded that the degree or nature of exposure does not constitute a health risk.

Alternatively, it may be deemed necessary to introduce one or more measures to:

- Prevent the risk completely by removing or replacing the hazardous substance with a non-hazardous on;
- Reduce or prevent the risk by changing work practices;

New Forest District Council

Appletree Court, Beaulieu Road, Lyndhurst. Hampshire. SO43 7PN newforest.gov.uk



- Ensure that control priorities are put in place with regards to design, control at source and PPE;
- Ensure that control measures are adopted, and safety procedures instigated and observed;
- Supply, test and maintain safety equipment and Personal Protective/Respiratory Equipment;
- Inform, instruct and train employees with regard to the potential risks and precautions to be taken.

3. Good Practice Standards

3.1 Procurement of Substances and Materials

All substances and materials procured by NFDC that are covered by the CoSHH Regulations should be supplied with a material safety data sheet.

If a safety data sheet is not provided, then the supplier can be contacted to obtain a copy which will assist with the risk assessment process and must be stored securely alongside the completed risk assessment.

3.2 Risk Assessment

All substances used within NFDC must be subject to a suitable and sufficient **CoSHH risk assessment**. This assessment must be completed by a competent individual (see 2.2)

Each risk assessment must be reviewed periodically except in the following circumstances when the assessment will require a review sooner:

- Where there has been a significant change in process or task
- If the substance/s or material/s have changed
- Following an incident (involving the substance, material or task)

3.3 Storage

Storage of hazardous substances and materials should be in accordance with the finding of the risk assessment and statutory requirements.

3.4 Use of Substances and Materials

All hazardous substances and materials must be used in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions for use and the findings of the risk assessment.

3.5 Disposal

Arrangements for disposal of unused or unwanted hazardous substances and materials will be determined within the risk assessment.



3.6 Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) and Respiratory Protective Equipment (RPE)

Any personal protective equipment identified as necessary by risk assessment must be procured and issued to those employees having a need to use it.

PPE must be individual and not shared.

Regular inspections of PPE must take place and be documented by Managers/Supervisors, where any deficiencies exist with PPE it must be disposed of safely and securely and new PPE issued to the individual employee.

Both PPE and RPE should be stored in designated personal accommodation.

Where RPE is used, suitable prescribed face fit testing in accordance with regulations should be carried out by a competent person to ensure a personal fit without leakage. All employees using RPE must be clean shaven.

3.7 Monitoring and Health Surveillance

3.7.1 Active Monitoring

Active monitoring shall be achieved by regular workplace inspections and supervision of tasks being undertaken.

Additionally, the Corporate Health and Safety Team will undertake periodic audits of individual Services and Teams.

3.7.2 Reactive Monitoring

Reactive monitoring shall be achieved by Services reviewing incident reports received in relation to hazardous substances, materials or process emissions.

Further reactive monitoring may be undertaken following advice from occupational health as necessary.

3.7.3 Health Surveillance

See Occupational Health and Health Surveillance Policy

3.8 Documentation

All documentation relating to hazardous substances, materials and process emissions must be maintained for a minimum period of 5 years in the case of general minimal exposure to the workforce, and for 40 years in the case of personal exposure to identifiable individual employees from the date of last use.

Retention schedules can be set within the Council's SharePoint folders.

3.9 Accidents and Emergency Procedures

Procedures should be put in place in case of an accident or accidental spillage, which should include first aid provision, safety drills (where necessary), information in emergency arrangements, firefighting arrangements and other specific hazards to expect in an emergency.



4. Training And competence

4.1 CoSHH Assessors

Specific Services within the Council where it is known that employees use or are exposed to hazardous substances must appoint an individual to be their designated CoSHH Assessor.

These Services include:

- Open Spaces (to include Pest Control)
- Street Scene
- Workshops
- Housing Maintenance
- Facilities

There is also the potential for other Council Services, and the teams within them, to appoint individuals as competent CoSHH Assessors. Should it be determined, as necessary, these assessors <u>must</u> receive training approved by the Corporate Health and Safety Team.

This assessor can help to:

- Identify if a substance, material or process emission is covered by the Regulations
- assess substance, material or process emission risks and put control measures in place
- provide assistance and or training to the staff in their service or team

Currently the Corporate H&S team take on the responsibility of providing this competent support.

Should NFDC put in place provisions to have trained assessors it enables NFDC to benefit from their experience and knowledge to quickly and easily carry out CoSHH assessments for particular substances used in specific workplace environments and tasks.

4.2 Competence of CoSHH Assessors

All CoSHH Assessors are required to be competent; the following standards will demonstrate that an individual is competent to conduct CoSHH risk assessments to a suitable and sufficient standard.

The individual should:

- Be able to demonstrate an understanding of the CoSHH Regulations, including the approved code of practice
- Be able to gather relevant information about how exposure to a substance, material or process emission may occur and the risks to an individual's health from exposure
- Be able to specify actions that are required to comply with CoSHH Regulations
- Be able to understand their limitations and identify when further assistance may be required
- Be able to produce clear and concise reports on the findings of an assessment when required

New Forest District Council

Appletree Court, Beaulieu Road, Lyndhurst. Hampshire. SO43 7PN newforest.gov.uk



4.3 Refresher Training for Assessors

All assessors are expected to revisit training materials periodically. This could be through the format of webinars, e-learning, external training, revision of up-to-date guidance or internal training.

4.4 Training for all other employees (including temporary and agency workers)

All employees are to be provided training that is consistent with their exposure to hazardous substances, materials or process emissions.

It is the responsibility of line management of individuals to ensure that all training undertaken in respect of CoSHH is recorded and these records are kept in accordance with NFDC retention schedules.

5. Additional Information

5.1 Useful HSE Links 5.2 Useful Non HSE Links 5.3 Useful Video Links

6. Appendix

6.1 General guide on process to follow

Based on the HSE Guide

A CoSHH assessment concentrates on the hazards and risks from hazardous substances in your work area or related to your work task.

It is important to remember that health hazards are not limited to substances or materials labelled as 'hazardous' and that some harmful substances can be produced by the process you are undertaking, for example fumes produced from welding or dusts from sanding down wood.



Stage 1 Identify the hazards

- Identify which substances, materials or process emissions are harmful by reading product information, labels and safety data sheets
- If you are in doubt, contact the supplier of the substance or material for more information
- Remember to think about harmful substances produced by your activities that may not have a specific safety data sheet, speak to a member of the Corporate Health and Safety Team if you feel that you may need more information

Stage 2 Decide who might be harmed and how

• How might people be exposed?

Think about the route into the body (whether the substance can be breathed in, get onto or through the skin or can even be swallowed) and the effects of the exposure by each of these routes

- Think how often people work with the substance or material or are exposed to the process emissions and for how long each time
- Think about anyone else who could be exposed, not just NFDC employees
- Also think about who could be exposed accidentally if controls fail or a spillage occurs

Stage 3 & 4 Evaluate the risks and decide on controls

Once you have carried out a risk assessment and identified which harmful substance or materials are present and how people can be harmed, you need to think about how to prevent exposure.

- Do you really need to use a particular substance or material, or is a safer alternative available?
- Can you change the activity or task to eliminate the substance use or avoid producing it?

If this is not possible then you **must** put in place adequate control measures to reduce exposure.



Control measures could include:

Changing the activity/task to reduce risks

• Consider whether you can change the activity to reduce the risk of exposure.

Containment

- Enclose the process or activity as much as possible to minimise the escape or release of harmful process emissions
- Use closed handling systems
- Extract emissions of the substance near the source

Systems of Work

- Restrict access to only those people that need to be there
- Plan the storage of materials and use appropriate containers
- Check storage containers are correctly labelled and that incompatible materials are separated
- Plan the storage and disposal of waste

Cleaning

- Exposure to hazardous substances can occur during cleaning so plan and organise the workplace so that it can be easily and effectively cleaned
- Smooth work surfaces will allow easy cleaning
- Have the right equipment and procedures to clear up spillages quickly and safely
- Clean regularly using a 'dust free' method vacuum rather than sweep

Snewforestdc f newforestgov newforestcouncil



6.2 Corporate CoSHH Assessment Template



Date: Revision No.

			X	XXX	ХS	ervio	:es	CO	SH	H /	As	ses	sme	ent				
Refere	nce N	lo																
			-															
PRODUC	CT DE	TAILS																
Product I	Name																	
Manufac																		
MSDS S													Da	ated				
Chemica			/ Des	criptio	n /													
Common USE OF			F															
What is §				r?														
Persons	using	produc	:t?															
How is it brush, sp	Applie	d (e.g.	dilut	ed, ap	plied	with	F											
			/					Outside					Public areas					
Location (Click on			cable)				nside (ventila		[Inside (limited ventilation)				
				, 			0	Other (state)										
Approx. I	how m	uch is	being) used	per t	task. (Litre	es / k	g)									
Approx. (duratio	n of ta	sk / fi	requer	псу о	fexpo	sun	e?										
HAZARD) IDEN	TIFIC/	ATIOI	N									(Click or	1 bo	x as	applic	able)
	Very	Toxic			\Diamond		Corr	Corrosive			ا 🔇		Irritant	Irritant				
\diamond	Toxic	;				> 1	Harr	larmful 🗌			E			Enviro	Environmental			
٩	Resp	iratory		C	Other	(state	e)										•	
CHEMIC	AL ST	ATE											((Click on box as app			applic	able)
Solid	1		owdei ust	r/		Liq	uid	uid 🗌				Gas / Vapour			Mi	st		
FLAMM/	ABILIT													Click on	i bo	x as a	applic	able)
	<u>></u>		ghly ammai	ble							> Oxidi			dising	ísing			
			ammal	ble							>	Explosive						
ROUTE	OF EX	POSU	RE										(Click or	1 bo	x as	applic	able)
Ingesti				Inhala	ation					ikin ntao	ct]	E	Eyes	6		
Other			Long	-					Oher	+ + ~ ·			_		-		-	
Workplace Long term exposure limit (8hr TWA)								Shor (15m						N/	A			
Other (Sta																		
PPE													(Click or	1 box	x as	applic	able)
Type / Standard						ď								Ту	pe / s	standa	rd	
Θ.		Glasse						0	0		Dis	posab	le Mas	ik				
(F) (Visor						0	C]	Glo	wes						

COSHH Assessment

Page 1 of 2

New Forest District Council Appletree Court, Beaulieu Road, Lyndhurst. Hampshire. SO43 7PN **newforest.gov.uk**

Snewforestdc f newforestgov newforestcouncil





Date: Revision No.

•	Respirato	r		O .	Safet	y Footwear		
	Overalls			0	Other	r		
CONTROL M	IEASURES	& EMERGEN	ICY FIRS	TAID				
In cas					s (contr	ol measu	res)	
							,	
Inhalation								
Skin Contact								
Eye Contact								
On Ingestion								
Further Conti	rols							
STORAGE A	ND HANDI	LING						
Pack / Conta	iner Size							
Control Meas	sures							
TRANSPORT	r considi	RATIONS						
EMERGENC	Y FIRE PR	ECAUTIONS						
ENVIRONME								
ENVIRONME		NIROL						
	ONTROL	Click on box a	as applica					
Hazardous Waste		Biological Waste		Gener waste			Return to supplier	
	QUIRED AS	A RESULT O	OF ASSE					s applicable)
Health Surve	illance /mo	nitoring require	ed?	YES			NO 🗆	
Is exposure a	dequately	controlled?		YES			NO 🗆	
		ontrol measure	es	•			(Click box as	s applicable)
High			Medium	1 🗆			Low [
Assessor		Signature		Date			Next review	w date
		-						
Reviewed by		Signature		Date			1	
							1	

COSHH Assessment

Page 2 of 2

Editable version of Corporate CoSHH Assessment can be found on ForestNet here.

New Forest District Council Appletree Court, Beaulieu Road, Lyndhurst. Hampshire. SO43 7PN **newforest.gov.uk**

Snewforestdc f newforestgov newforestcouncil